APPENDIX B

MINUTES OF THE INFORMAL JOINT MEETING OF THE ALEXANDRA PARK & PALACE STATUTORY ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE

TUESDAY, 5 APRIL 2011

Advisory Committee Nominated Members of:

Alexandra Residents' Association : Ms J. Hutchinson Bounds Green and District Residents Association : Mr K. Ranson

Muswell Hill and Fortis Green Association : Mr Dennis Heathcote

*Palace Gates Residents' Association : Ms J. Baker

Palace View Residents Association : Ms E. Richardson

The Rookfield Association : Mr D. Frith Warner Estate Residents' Association : Mr D. Liebeck

1 Vacancy

Advisory Committee Appointed Members:

Alexandra Ward : Councillor Beacham
Bounds Green Ward : Councillor Christophides

Fortis Green Ward : Councillor Erskine
Hornsey Ward : Councillor Whyte
Muswell Hill Ward : Councillor Jenks
Noel Park Ward : Councillor Gibson
*Council-wide Member : Councillor Demirci
Council-wide Member : Councillor Watson

Consultative Committee Nominated Members:

Alexandra Palace Amateur Ice Skating Club

*Alexandra Palace Allotments Association
Alexandra Palace Angling Association
Alexandra Palace Organ Appeal

*Alexandra Palace Television Group
Alexandra Residents' Association

Mr M. Tarpey
Mr C. Mahony
Mr K. Pestell
Mr R. Tucker
Mr J. Thompson
Alexandra Residents' Association
Ms C. Hayter

*Alexandra Palace Garden Centre Mr C. Campbell-Preston

Alexandra Park and Palace Conservation Area

Advisory Committee Mr C. Marr Bounds Green and District Residents' Association Mr K. Ranson *CUFOS Mr J. Smith

Friends of Alexandra Park

*Friends of the Alexandra Palace Theatre

Mr G. Hutchinson

Mr N. Willmott

Hornsey Historical Society Mr. J. O'Callaghan

*Muswell Hill and Fortis Green Association Ms D Feeney
Muswell Hill Metro Group Mr J. Boshier
New River Action Group Miss R. Macdonald

Palace View Residents' Association

*The Grove Café

*Vitrine Ltd - The Lakeside Café

Miss V. Paley

Mrs C. Amoruso

Mr A. Yener

*Vitrine Ltd - The Lakeside Café Mr A. Yener Warner Estate Residents' Association Prof. R. Hudson

Consultative Committee Appointed Members:

Councillor Egan
Councillor Hare
*Councillor Beace

*Councillor Peacock

^{*} denotes absence

Councillor Strickland

Also attending

Andrew Gill - Interim General Manager, Alexandra Palace

Mark Evison – Park Manager, Alexandra Palace

Rebecca Kane – Managing Director, Alexandra Palace Trading Company (APTL)

Charlotte Johnson - Marketing Manager, APTL

Sam Davidson – LB Haringey Transformation Project Manager (Building Schools for the Future (BSF))

Jon McGrath – LB Haringey Capital Delivery Programme Manager

Simon Garrill - Head Teacher, Heartlands School

Natalie Cole – Clerk to the Committee (LB Haringey)

MINUTE NO.

SUBJECT/DECISION

APSC01. ELECTION OF CHAIR

RESOLVED that Denis Heathcote be appointed Chair of the Informal Joint Meetings of the Alexandra Park and Palace Statutory Advisory Committee and the Alexandra Palace and Park Consultative Committee.

APSC02. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Sheila Peacock, Nigel Scott and James Stewart and, Colin Campbell-Preston (Alexandra Palace Garden Centre), Denise Feeney (Muswell Hill and Fortis Green Association), Nigel Willmott (Friends of the Alexandra Palace Theatre).

An apology for lateness was received from Councillor Pauline Gibson.

APSC03. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Jim Jenks declared a general personal interest as he was a member of the Warners Estate Residents' Association (WERA).

Councillor David Beacham declared a prejudicial interest in item 5 (Cricket Clubhouse and Grounds) and item 6 (Network Rail Proposals) as he was a member of the Planning Committee and did not take part in the consideration of items 5 & 6.

Councillor Joanna Christophides declared a prejudicial interest in item 5 (Cricket Clubhouse and Grounds) and item 6 (Network Rail Proposals) as she was a member of the Planning Committee and did not take part in the consideration of items 5 & 6.

^{*}Councillor Scott

^{*}Councillor Stewart

^{*}Councillor Williams

APSC04. MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING

- i. The draft minutes of the Advisory Committee held on 25th January 2011 were noted.
- ii. The draft minutes of the meeting of the Consultative Committee held on 8th February 2011 were noted.
- iii. The confirmed minutes of the meetings of the Alexandra Palace and Park Board held on 21st December 2010 and 28th January 2011 and the draft minutes of 15th February 2011 were noted.

APSC05. CRICKET CLUBHOUSE AND GROUNDS

RECEIVED the proposals to improve facilities at the Alexandra Park cricket clubhouse and grounds as part of a project with Heartlands High School (as laid out in pages 47-56 of the agenda pack) and the tabled site maps, introduced by Sam Davidson (Transformation Project Manager - BSF). A discussion followed.

NOTED:

- Eight committee members attended a site visit on 22nd March 2011.
- The Head teacher of Heartlands School, Simon Garrill informed the Committees that that the school held regular meetings with the local community in order to consult about issues and to give pupils an understanding of the school's role in the community, with the conservation area and with the cricket club.
- The school would use the pitches in consultation with the cricket club. The
 facilities would also be available for use by the cricket club's many existing
 teams, without the need or cost of travelling to other facilities off site.
- Planning permission for Phase 2 (construction of a multi-use games area (MUGA)) would be sought in December 2011, which would allow time for thorough consultation and habitat and bat surveys of the area. The Phase 2 proposals would be considered by the Alexandra Palace Board at a later stage.
- There were comments that consultation with local residents, particularly those in Campsbourne Estate and Montague Road, should begin now and that future consultation should be conducted outside of the summer holiday period. In response officers explained that consultation could not begin until the design of Phase 2 of the project had been completed but that there would be extensive consultation including conservation groups and a Biodiversity Action Plan.
- Committee Members recommended that the reasons for not proposing the MUGA be built on the school site must be made clear in future consultations.
- Committee members generally supported improved use of the playing fields (Phase 1) but expressed concerns about Phase 2, the MUGA proposals, including: the potential damage to the local habitats, the floodlighting so close to a conservation area, the potential loss of established trees, replacement of grass with paving, the potential detrimental visual affect of the MUGA.

- Officers recognised that the proposals for the MUGA extended beyond the curtilage of the cricket club's current demise and reported that the Board would be required to grant a new lease to the club on the basis of enhanced income.
- The Alexandra Palace Garden Centre operator had offered to donate a garden bench to the cricket club if the project was completed.

AGREED

- i. That the Committees generally supported Phase 1 of the proposals to improve facilities at the Alexandra Park cricket clubhouse and grounds as part of a project with Heartlands High School.
- ii. That Phase 2 was a concern to the Committees and proper consultation with the local community and the Committees was recommended including extensive plans on the scale and size of the MUGA and full details about the proposed floodlighting.

APSC06. NETWORK RAIL PROPOSALS

RECEIVED the briefing of the Park Manager, Mark Evison, on the proposals by Network Rail for new rail sheds which would be visible from the Park and Palace, as set out in Pages 57 – 60 of the agenda pack). The Committees were reminded that individuals, associations and groups could make their own representations to the Planning Authority. If no details are available before a planning application is made, an Urgency Meeting of the Advisory Committee may be required to consider the details.

NOTED

- There was limited information available on the proposals despite requests by the Park Manager for more detail from Network Rail.
- Committee Members expressed concern about the height of the proposed shed and considered 11 metres to be very high, which would detract from the view to the east from the Palace.
- The Alexandra Palace Conservation Area Advisory Committee (APCAAC) had objected to Network Rail's original proposals and was likely to object to this proposal.
- That the Board be encouraged to reject the proposals if more information was not provided by Network Rail.

AGREED

That Network Rail be urged to provide more information on the proposals for new rail sheds which could be considered by the Committees.

APSC07. FORTHCOMING EVENTS

RECEIVED the forthcoming events report from Rebecca Kane, Managing Director, Alexandra Palace Trading Company (APTL), as set out in Pages 61 – 64 of the agenda pack.

NOTED

- The Committees concerns that the RAC Drive-in Movie event had created noise disturbance the previous year. Ms Kane explained that this had been an issue on the first night of the event last year when they were piloting the event, but that the sound had been adjusted that evening and all subsequent evenings, which resulted in no further complaints.
- There was a comment that the Palace should hold more Open House events and it was reported that this was an initiative by the London Open House, which the Palace facilitated. Officers were asked to check the dates of the Open House event (Friday 16th - Saturday 17th September) as the event was usually held on a Saturday.
- Concerns were raised about the Palace maintaining the private road status for Alexandra Palace Way if it did not close the road at least once every year (normally during the annual fireworks display, which had been cancelled due to limited resources). The Interim General Manager, Andrew Gill, stated that he would investigate whether this was the case and if necessary he would arrange for the road to be closed temporarily.

AGREED to note the report and recommend that the Board consider holding two Open House events each year at Alexandra Palace.

APSC08. ALEXANDRA PALACE SIGNAGE STRATEGY

RECEIVED the report (as set out in Pages 65 – 86 of the agenda pack) on the Alexandra Palace Signage Strategy introduced by Rebecca Kane (Managing Director – APTL) and Charlotte Johnson (Marketing Manager – APTL).

NOTED

- Advertising consent from the London Borough of Haringey would be required for Phase 2 (new promotional signage) of the strategy.
- The Committees expressed some concern about the signage proposals including: signs should mention both the Park and the Palace, 20 mile per hour speed limit was welcomed but should be on a separate sign, external advertising should be limited, some members were not keen on having large signs on grass areas of the Park and recommended that such signs should be limited to the Palace building and the surrounding area such as the road sides, entrances and outside of the Park to encourage people to enter.
- It was recommended that notice-boards be included in the signage strategy to display details of What's On at the Palace.
- The Phoenix Bar was projected to break even this year after previous years of operating at a loss [once overheads were accounted for]. The plans to change the name and re-brand the pub would include the local sourcing of produce and a better quality wine list.
- Members comments included: the name "Phoenix Bar" was already established and resonated with the history of the Palace, that current pricing at the pub was too high, there were different needs for locals using the pub and event users,

the outside of the pub was not inviting due to the lack of landscaping outside the building.

- In response to some of the concerns raised it was noted that the pub had previously relied solely on events for its trade but that it needed to diversify to protect its revenue streams; one way of encouraging local use was to introduce a better menu and the concept of 'sociable dining' (platters and mezze dishes etc) especially in the summer.
- Ms Kane explained the rationale behind the Bar & Kitchen proposal and that it
 would be used in conjunction with Alexandra Palace in promotional material
 and people would colloquially refer to the "Bar & Kitchen at Ally Pally" hence it
 would work well with the well-established name of the venue.
- Some Members expressed concern about the lack of consultation on the rebranding of Alexandra Palace with the Committees and that the Board had rubber stamped the idea for the new brand and logo.
- Some members commented that it was premature to adopt a new brand image in advance of the outcome of the current consultancy 'Options Appraisal' study.
- Cllr Egan clarified that there was some confusion between the new branding and the future strategy for the site. The strategic concept being worked up was a different project.

AGREED

- That the need for new signage in and around the Palace was recognised and that the Board should be asked to note the comments above.
- ii. That action to promote the bar was required but some members thought the proposed name of "Bar and Kitchen" should be reconsidered.

APSC09. GOVERNANCE & FUTURE VISION

RECEIVED the Governance Update report, introduced by the Interim General Manager, Alexandra Palace, Andrew Gill, as set out in pages 87 – 93 of the agenda pack.

NOTED that the full LB Haringey Council meeting on 4th April 2011 had approved the recruitment of independent advisors to the Board.

AGREED to note the report.

APSC10. ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK VISION

RECEIVED the mission and vision statement as set out on the agenda front sheet.

NOTED

 The Alexandra Palace and Park Regeneration Working Group would consider the first draft report from Locum Consultants with the intention that the second draft of the report would be considered by the Board on 9th May. The draft should be in the public domain five working days prior to the meeting, on 27th May 2011 and it would be emailed to members of the Committees.

- Stakeholders would be updated on the findings, options and feasibility study at a meeting on 3rd May 2011 and comments would be fed back to the Board on 9th May 2011.
- Committee members complained that this was the first opportunity that the Committees had to consider the Vision statement that had emerged from the Regeneration Working Group and objected that it was more like a high level aspiration and mission statement rather than a proper vision that should contain more substance. The idea that the Vision statement grew out of earlier consultation with stakeholders was also questioned.
- Committee members suggested that the mission statement should include the word "heritage". Officers explained that the strategic plan would include specific details about the various areas of the Palace. This was recognised and supported by some members who felt that the wording in the statements was sufficient.

AGREED to note the vision and mission statements but the Board should be asked to note the comments above.

APSC11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

There would be a meeting between the Chair, the Chair of the Board, the Chair of the Statutory Advisory Committee and the Interim General Manager to review the informal joint meeting.

APSC12. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

NOTED that the next Joint Informal Meeting of the Alexandra Park and Palace Advisory Committee and the Alexandra Palace and Park Consultative Committee (APPSAC and APPCC) was provisionally scheduled to be held on Tuesday 31st May 2011.

The meeting ended at 21:00 hrs

Denis Heathcote

Chair